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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MARYLAND

)

Joseph DeSoto, M.D. PhD )
105 Myrtie Drive )
Gerrardstown, West Virginia 25420 )
Plaintiff, )

) Case No:

\2 )

)

Department of Defense )
4301 Jones Bridge Road )
Bethesda, Maryland 20814-4712 )
Defendant, )

)

)

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, Dr. Joseph DeSoto, by way of his attorney, Morris E. Fischer, Esq., hereby
states the following complaint, on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry under

the circumstances, against Defendant:

PARTIES
1. Plaintiff, Dr. Joseph DeSoto, is a resident at 105 Myrtle Drive, Gerrardstown, West
Virginia 25420, Dr. DeSoto worked for The Department of Defense.
2. Plaintiff is a member of the Jewish faith.
3. Judaism is recognized as a religion for purposes of the statutes herein mentioned.
4. Defendant, Department of Defense, 4301 Jones Bridge Road, Bethesda, Maryland 20814-

4712



L
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14.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

. This court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sec. 1331 for claims

arising under federal law, i.e. § 2000e-3.
Venue is vested in this Court, since Defendant is a Department of Defense facility.
This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (Title VII) and 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) ef seq.

FACTS
In August of 2007, Dr. DeSoto started working for Uniformed Services University of the
Health Sciences (“USUHS™).
From August 2007 to April 2010, Dr. DeSoto worked at USUHS as an Associate
Professor.
USUHS is part of the Department of Defense.
On Qctober 10, 2009, Dr. DeSoto placed on Tenure Track by Dr. Padden, letter placed in
Dr. DeSoto’s file in regard to his tenure.
On December 1, 2009, Col. Schoneboom, Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, stopped
Dr. DeSoto’s class and told him to leave.
Col. Schoneboom proceeded to slander Dr. DeSoto in front of students telling them that
the lecture was inappropriate.
On December 2, 2009, Col. Schoneboom slanders Dr. DeSoto to faculty to other faculty
members to cover his own misconduct,
On December 3, 2009, students notified Dr. DeSoto of lectures Col. Schoneboom was

aware of with inappropriate graphics shown by other professors.
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24,
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27.

28.

Senior VP of USUHS was notified of pornography on Col. Schoneboom’s government

computer.

On December 4, 2009, Col. Schoneboom turned over his government computer to UIS.

The hard drive was cleaned of pornography.

. Col. Schoneboom was given a new computer by UIS management.

On December 6, 2009, Col. Schoneboom gained access to Dr. Desoto’s blackboard page
to alter it and embarrass him.

On December 17, 2010, Dr. DeSoto filed an EEO complaint for Religious Discrimination
and Harassment.

On January 11, 2010, Dr. DeSoto received a voice mail with a death threat over his
discrimination complaint.

On January 11, 2010, Dr. DeSoto met with Dale Smith and informed him of the death
threat and records in Human Resources being altered.

On February 5, 2010, USUHS Grievance Committee found Col. Schoneboom guiity of
misconduct.

No further action was taken against Col. Schoneboom.

On February 25, 2010, Dr. Charles Rice concurred with the findings of Grievance
Commilttee, still no further action taken against Col. Schoneboom.

On March 1, 2010, Dr. DeSoto informs Mrs. Burke, EEO Counselor, of the concurrence
and added to his EEO complaint the claim that no disciplinary action was taken against
Col. Schonebooom.

On March 15, 2010, Dr. DeSoto heard from EEO on his complaint.
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34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

On March 19. 2010, Dr. DeSoto received a letter of Expiration of Appointment stating
his last day of employment at USUHS will be June 30, 2010.

On June 29, 2009, Dr. DeSoto received and signed a Performance Evaluation covering
June 1, 2008- May 31, 2009 with outstanding marks in all areas of concern.

Dr. DeSoto on several occasions heard the statement of “he smells like a dirty Mexican

*

Jew.
Dr, DeSoto was called a “filthy Jew” in public by Col. Schoneboom.

Other employees made religious disparaging remarks against the plaintiff.

Neither Col. Schoneboom nor anyone else at Department of Defense made any attempt to
stop the treatment against the plaintiff.

Col. Schoneboom is not of the Jewish faith.

In 2009 after close family members funerat Col. Schoneboom asked why the plaintiff was
wearing a beard.

Dr. DeSoto replied that the beard is a religious practice.

Col. Schoneboom stated in response “I do not care about primitive religious superstition;
you look like an animal.”

On January 2, 2010, Dr. DeSoto notified Adasue Hinshaw, Dean of Graduate School of
Nursing, of his concerns about faculty calling a student “Nigger.”

On March 2, 2010, Dr. DeSoto was informed that USUHS is going to pretend they did
not know he is Jewish.

On March 11, 2010, Dr. DeSoto wore a Yarmulke, a religious head covering, to a faculty
meeting,

William Bester, Col. Schoneboom and Adasue Henshaw attended the meeting.
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39,

40.

41.
42.
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47.
48.
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51.

On March 15, 2010, William Bester, Acting President, stopped Dr. DeSoto in the quad
asking why he is wearing a beard.

On March 16, 2010, Dr. DeSoto sent an e-mail replying to Bester’s question explaining
his religious practice.

Bester reply’s stating he did not know DeSoto was Jewish,

Bester’s statement was false because Bester knew of plaintiff's faith.

On April 2010, Dr. DeSoto’s vehicle was vandalized with a swastika and “Die Jude”
spray painted on the passenger side door, (Exhibit A).

The fuel had also been tampered with.

On March 24, 2010, Dr. DeSoto was informed that USUHS is going to drop they did not
know he is Jewish strategy and delay the investigation.

Col. Schoneboom frequently refers to a “Mexican odor” when Dr. DeSoto is around and
to stop eating so many tacos.

Dr. DeSoto does not eat tacos because they are not kosher.

Plaintiff filed his formal complaint on December 17, 2009.

More then 180 days have passed since his filing.

The non-renewal of the plaintiff’s contract was a foreseeable event of retaliation.

The non-renewal of the contract is reasonably related to the aforementioned defendant’s

actions.

COUNT1

HOSTILE WORK ENVIROMENT BASED ON RELIGIOUS DISCRIMINATION

Plaintiff hereby adopts and incorporates all aforesaid paragraphs as if herein and states:
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52.
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61.

Pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Right Act of 1964 (Title VI1), it is an unlawful
employment practice for an employer to discriminate against any individual with respect
to his compensation, terms, conditions or privileges of employment because of such
individual’s religion.

The Defendant is vicariously liable for the behavior of Plaintiff’s supervisor, Col.
Schoneboom.

The Defendant is also liable in that failed to exercise reasonable care to prevent and
correct promptly any harassing behavior.

Plaintiff attempted to prevent the harassment from reoccurring by complaining fo
'The Department of Defense about it.

The actions of The Department of Defense, by and through its agents, servants and
employees constituted unlawful harassment.

Religion was the motivating factor that The Department of Defense treated the Plaintiff
in the matter it did.

Religion was a motivating factor that The Department of Defense treated the Plaintiff in
the matter it did.

The Department of Defense, by and through its employees, including but not limited to
Col. Schoneboom and others, created and perpetuated a hostile work environment for
Plaintiff on the basis of his religion.

Said hostile environment included the aforementioned activities against PlaintifT,

The harassment was objectively and subjectively sufficiently severe enough to alter the

terms and conditions of employment.
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62. As a direct result of The Department of Defense’s actions and omissions, Plaintiff
suffered monetary and non-monetary damages.

63. Plaintiff has also suffered anguish, anxiety, fear, helplessness, shock, humiliation, insult,
embarrassment, depression and other damages as a direct result of The Department of
Defense’s acts and omissions.

Wherefore, Plaintiff demands in the first cause of action, judgment against Defendant in

the amount of $ 2,000,000.00.

COUNTII
HOSTILE WORK ENVIRONMENT BASED ON RETALIATION

Plaintiff hereby adopts and incorporates all aforesaid paragraphs as if herein and states:

64. Pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Right Act of 1964 (Title VII), it is an unlawful
employment practice for an employer to discriminate against any individual with respect
to his compensation, terms, conditions or privileges of employment because of such
individual’s religion,

65. The Defendant is vicariously liable for the behavior of Plaintiff's supervisor, Col.
Schoneboom.

66. The Defendant is also liable in that failed to exercise reasonable care to prevent and
correct promptly any harassing behavior.

67. Plaintiff attempted to prevent the harassment from reoccurring by complaining to The
Department of Defense about it.

68. The actions of The Department of Defense, by and through its agents, servants and
employees constituted unlawful harassment.

69. The EEO activity was the motivating factor that the company treated the Plaintiff in the

matter it did.
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70. The EEO activity was a motivating factor that the company treated the Plaintiff in the
matter it did.

71. The Department of Defense, by and through its employees, including but not limited to
Col. Schoneboom and others created and perpetuated a hostile work environment for Plaintiff on
the basis of his EEO activity. Said hostile environment included the aforementioned activities
against Plaintiff,

72. The harassment was objectively and subjectively sufficiently severe enough to alter the
terms and conditions of employment.

73. As a direct result of The Department of Defense’s actions and omissions, Plaintiff
suffered monetary and non-mongctary damages.

74. Plaintiff has also suffered anguish, anxiety, fear, helplessness, shock, humiliation, insult,
embarrassment, depression and other damages as a direct result of The Department of Defense’s
acts and omissions.

Wherefore, Plaintiff demands in the second cause of action, judgment against Defendant

in the amount of § 2,000,000.00.

Count 111
Retaliation in Violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

Plaintiff adopts and incorporates by reference all of the allegations set forth in the
previous paragraphs as if the same were fully set forth herein.
75. Defendant’s aforementioned actions would dissuade an individual from participating or
filing an EEO claim of discrimination

76. Plaintiff participated in EEO activity.



Case 8:10-cv-03208-RWT Document 1 Filed 11/12/10 Page 9 of 12

77. The aforesaid discriminatory treatment by Defendant toward Plaintiff caused tangible
harm to Plaintiff in that they affected the terms, conditions and privileges of his
employment.

78. Other similarly situated employees who have not engaged in protected activity were not
subject to the same conditions of employment as Plaintiff.

79. Plaintiff’s supervisors had knowledge of Plaintiff’s prior protected activity.

80. A causal connection exists between aforementioned Defendant’s actions in and
Plaintif”s prior protected activity.

81. Defendant’s aforementioned conduct and statements reflect directly on a retaliatory
attitude toward Plaintiff.

82, Defendant’s aforementioned conduct and statements reflect directly on the contested
employment decision.

83. Defendant’s actions constituted a violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
and 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) et seq.

84. Defendant’s aforementioned actions caused damages to the Plaintiff.

85. In addition to the above, Plaintiff also suffered anguish, anxiety, fear, helplessness,
shock, humiliation, insult, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, and other damages.
Wherefore, Plaintiff demands in the third cause of action, judgment against Defendant in

the amount of $ 2,000,000.00.
Count IV

Discrimination Based on Religion in Vielation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964

Plaintiff adopts and incorporates by reference all of the allegations set forth in the

previous paragraphs as if the same were fully set forth herein.
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86. Defendant’s actions in not renewing the contract were based on his religion.

87. The aforesaid discriminatory treatment by Defendant toward Plaintiff caused tangible
harm to Plaintiff in that they affected the terms, conditions and privileges of his
employment.

88. A causal connection exists between Defendant’s actions in failing to renew the contract
and the Plaintiff’s religion.

89. Defendant’s actions constituted a violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
and 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) ef seq.

90. Defendant’s aforementioned actions caused damages to the Plaintiff.

91. In addition 1o the above, Plaintiff also suffered anguish, anxiety, fear, helplessness,

shock, humiliation, insult, embarrassment, loss of self-esteem, and other damages.

Wherefore, Plaintiff demands in the fourth cause of action, judgment against Defendant

in the amount of $ 2,000,000.00.

10
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that she be awarded the following relief: (a) a declaratory
judgment that the conduct engaged in by Defendant, jointly and severally, was a violation of
Plaintiff’s legal rights; (b) an injunction enjoining Defendant from engaging in such conduct in
the future; (c) that Defendant pay an award of statutory compensatory damages (pecuniary and
non-pecuniary) up to the maximum amount permitted by statute; (d) that Defendant to pay
reasonable attorneys” fees and costs of this litigation; (g) that Plaintiff be restored to his position;

(h) back pay; (i) front pay; and (h) such other relief as the Court may deem just and appropriate.

Regpectfully Submifted,
6 S

Morris E, Fischer, Esq.

MD Bar # 26286

1400 Spring Street

Suite 350

Silver Spring, MD 20910

(301)328-7631 phone

(301)328-7638 fax
Attorney for the Plaintiff

11
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JURY DEMANDED

Plaintiff through counsel, requests a trial by jury on all of the above claims,

Regpectfully Submitted,

=

Mortris B. Fischer, Lsq.
MD Bar # 26286

1400 Spring Street

Suite 350

Silver Spring, MD 20910
(301)328-7631 phone
(301)328-7638 fax
Attorney for the Plaintiff

12
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